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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Columbia County Courthouse, built in 1886, is a two story structure
with a ground level basement. Although the interior remains largely
intact, the exterior has been greatly changed from its original
Italianate appearance.

Built of kiln dried brick and covered with cement, masonry bearing
walls rest on a concrete foundation which is nearly flush with the sur-
rounding ground level. The building is basically rectangular in plan
although short wings project from the east and west sides, making it
appear an abbreviated cruciform in plan view. The symmetry of the plan
was reflected in the nearly identical design of the four facades.

Major entrances were provided on the north and south sides; the south
faced the main street and the north faced the rail line into town.

Both front and rear have a 12 foot wide stairway, constructed of embossefd

cast iron and supported by a concrete foundation. Over each double-
doored entry is a molded face. Each entry has a small porch; originally|,
from ground level to aplane even with the porch deck, the wall was
finished with simulated linear jointing continuous around the entire
structure. A portico covered each entrance and rose a full story in
height to serve as a second floor balcony. The balcony was supported
by both square and turned pillars with decorated capitals; a balustrade
with decorated corner posts finished the balcony.

Quoins were continuous from ground level to the second floor where they
were terminated by an intermediate cornice; pilasters on the secoend
story continued the line established by the quoins and were themselves
terminated by double brackets supporting the cornice proper. The frieze
is decorated with panels and a row of dentils. The central pilasters
of each facade support a pedimented gable with a sunburst detail.

Three major window openings occur in each elevation. All windows are
double hung, very narrow and with a segmented arch head. Double win-
dows appear on the central face and are flanked by single windows. On
the original structure, first floor windows were finished with full
molded trim while second story windows had a hood mold only. The head
of the mold followed the arch of the window opening and a keystone was
centered in the trim.

The roof is a very low pitched truncated hip with low gables on each
side. Originally it was covered with metal and penetrated by numerous
decorated chimnies and stacks. A bronze statue of justice was placed
at the apex of the north and south gables and an American eagle at the
apex of the east and west gables.

A bracketed platform with wrought iron balustrade located centrally
on the roof served as a base for a story high mansard roof tower.

The square tower was penetrated on each side with double fully arched
windows separated by mullions. The pilaster and cornice detail dupli-

cated that of the main structure. Hooded vent gables were placed on
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each face of the tower roof. High metal cresting completed the tower
detail.

Although the Columbia County Courthouse is structurally unaltered, virtual
all of the Italianate detail has been removed or otherwise eliminated.
Quoins, the distinctive linear jointing of the ground floor, the inter-
mediate cornice separating the first and second floors, the decorated
pilasters and the window moldings are all gone. The positions of the
quoins, pilasters and cornice are all indicated now by vertical and hori-
zontal bands. There is no window trim although the keystones remain.

The windows, which originally were of three lights each, presently have
the upper light blocked. The porches remain although without the turned
posts, decorated capitals and balustrade. Only one chimney of modern
design now extends above the roof and the metal roof itself has been
covered with asphaltic material. The tower was removed in 1947 because
of structural problems, although the decorative cresting is stored in

the courthouse attic. The bronze statues of Justice and the eagles were
removed about 1936 or 1937 and became a part of the scrap drives of World

War II.

The building has recently been painted a beige color and trimmed at the
cornice, windows and doors with a warm brown. The porticos are also warm
brown and the keystones and the sunbursts on the gable ends are bright
gold. The effect of the painting has been to emphasize the architectural
unity of the building and to accent some of the finer detail.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Built in 1886, the Columbia County Courthouse is the oldest existing
courthouse in the state of Washington. Although it has lost much
of its fine architectural detail, it still represents the importance
of county government, particularly in the early developing years

of the state.

Originally, Walla Walla County comprised all the part of Washington
Territory below the Snake River. Various attempts to make a smal-
ler division succeeded in 1876 when Columbia County was formed.
Columbia County comprised all that part of Walla Walla County from
a point between Huntsville and Waitsburg to the mouth of the Grande
Ronde River, or that which is now Columbia, Garfield and Asotin
Counties.

Upon organization of the county in 1876, Jesse H. Day, proprietor
of the town of Dayton, donated to the county eight lots on Main
Street with the proviso that the lots should be used for county
purposes only. Following a very heated campaign in 1878, the ques-
tion of the definite location of the county seat was placed before
the electorate. After the votes were counted, Dayton received 418 -
and its competitor, Marengo, received 300. As a side note, Marengo
is now virtually a ghost town with only a few old buildings as a
reminder of its past.

In November, 1881, Garfield County was created by the Territorial
Legislature, giving Columbia County its present configuration.

By 1882, the movement to construct a courthouse in Dayton grew to
such proportions that a vote was taken. The proposal lost, 447

to 255. Some say the proposition lost at the polls because the
voters felt the plan, which called for a $7,000 structure, was in-
adaquate or "not much better than no building at all". 1In 1884,
the voters returned to the polls and approved a $40,000 bond issue
to build the much needed courthouse. In 1886, the Territorial
Couyncil authorized Columbia County to build the courthouse and
the House of Representatives ratified the Council's action that same
year. The original document, signed by Secretary of State Thomas
S. Bayard, is on file in the county records. - o
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The construction contract for the building was awarded at a price of $32,732.
A. J. Dexter received $10,745, for the stone, brick and concrete work. Kribs,
Bishop and Arnold were paid $21,987 for the carpentry work. W. H. Burrows,

an architect, was employed as superintendent of construction for a salary of
$1,637. The four steel jail cells in use today cost an additional $3,700.

The bricks used in the courthouse were reportedly made of local clay in the
local Dexter Kiln. The courthouse was completed and officially accepted on
July 2, 1887, at the total cost of $38,067.

On May 19, 1915, two Civil War cannons arrived from the United States War
Department and were placed on display in the front courtyard on either side

of the walkway. George Wick, a night watchman and Civil War Veteran, was in-
strumental in obtaining the cannons. The touchhole of one was worn considerably,
indicating that it had been heavily used in battle. History recalls that shortly
thereafter, three high school students decided one night they would fire one of
the cannons. When the cannon was touched off, the roar was heard for miles
around and the cannon reportedly leaped about twenty feet into the air. Nearly
every window pane in the front of the courthouse was broken.

A faulty device used for burning sawdust caused a fire in the northerly portion
of the building in 1939. While no permanent structural damage resulted, some
of the then current courthouse records were destroyed. Total damage repair was
slightly over $4,000. No evidence of the fire is noticeable today.

The Columbia County Courthouse represents an earlier period of political activi-
ty when county government played a far greater role than it does today. In a
period of rapid growth and limited opportunity for contact with the state
capitol, it was to county government that persons turned as a source of authori-
ty and administration for the area. The needs most immediate to county citizens
were located in the courthouse: land and tax records, the assessor, judges and
commissioners. The Twentieth Century, with its hallmarks of rapid communi-
cation and mega-government, has eclipsed much of the utility of county functions
and the great majority of county governments reflect but little their former
strength and influence.

The selection of a community as county seat guaranteed it a place in the future
of the state, not always a certain thing in periods of development. Community
pride instilled a desire to establish a fitting structure and the courthouse

in Dayton was no exception. Finished with much Italianate detail it was a
most worthy edifice, well satisfying any urge to create a structure that also
could serve as a monument to county authority. Now all but a trace of that
detail is gone and it is difficult to discern hints of the flamboyant exterior.




